

www.monopoly.com www.hasbro-interactive.com





HASBRO INTERACTIVE 50 Dunham Road Beverly, MA 01915 USA

INSTRUCTION BOOKLET 500 NINTENDO.64 HASBRO Interactive

NUS-NMOE-UEA

PRINTED IN JAPAN

WARNING. PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE CONSUMER INFORMATION AND PRECAUTIONS BOOKLET INCLUDED WITH THIS PRODUCT BEFORE USING YOUR NINTENDO B HARDWARE SYSTEM GAME PAK OR ACCESSORY. THIS BOOKLET CONTAINS IMPORTANT SAFETY INFORMATION

THE OFFICIAL SEAL IS YOUR ASSURANCE THAT NINTENDO HAS APPROVED THE QUALITY OF THIS PRODUCT. ALWAYS LOOK FOR THIS SEAL WHEN BUYING GAMES AND ACCESSORIES TO ENSURE COMPLETE COMPATIBILITY. ALL NINTENDO PRODUCTS ARE LICENSED BY SALE FOR USE ONLY WITH OTHER AUTHORIZED PRODUCTS BEARING THE OFFICIAL NINTENDO SEAL OF QUALITY.





THIS PRODUCT HAS BEEN RATED BY THE ENTERTAINMENT SOFTWARE RATING BOARD. FOR INFORMATION ABOUT THE ESRB RATING, OR TO COMMENT ABOUT THE APPROPRIATENESS OF THE RATING, PLEASE CONTACT THE ESRB AT 1-800-771-3772.

EVERYONE For more information on this product's rating, call 1-800-771-3772 or visit http://www.esrb.org





1999 HASBRO, INC. 1999 HASBRO INTERA



LICENSED BY



NINTENDO, THE OFFICIAL SEAL, NINTENDO 64 AND THE 'N' LOGO ARE TRADEMARKS OF NINTENDO OF AMERICA INC. ©1996, 1999 NINTENDO OF AMERICA INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

The N64 Controller	4
Welcome to Monopoly™!	6
Getting Started	6
The Official Rules	8
The Gameplay Screen	14
The Trading Screen	16
The Short Game	18
The Timed Game	19
Game Rules Options	20
The Pause Menu	21
Hasbro Interactive's Web Sites	22
Technical Support	23
License Agreement	23
Credits	26

IMPORTANT!

When you first turn on the game, you will see a screen featuring an American flag and a British flag. Select the American flag and then press the A Button to continue. If you accidentally select the British flag, turn the Control Deck OFF and then press and hold START while turning the Control Deck back ON. This will return you to the Flag selection screen where you can now select the American flag.

THE N64 CONTROLLER

Control Stick Function

The Nintendo[™] 64 Control Stick uses an analog system to read the angles and directions of its movement. This allows subtle control that is not possible using the conventional + Control Pad.

When turning the Control Deck power ON, do not move the Control Stick from its neutral position on the controller.



If the Control Stick is held at an angled position (as shown in the picture on the left) when the power is turned ON, this position will be set as neutral. This will cause games using the Control Stick to operate incorrectly.

To reset the neutral position once the game has started, let go of the Control Stick so it can return to its center position (as shown in the picture on the left) then press **START** while holding the **L** and **R** buttons.



The Control Stick is a precision instrument — make sure not to spill liquids or place any foreign objects into it. If you need assistance, contact Nintendo Consumer Assistance at 1-800-255-3700 or your nearest Nintendo Authorized Repair Center^{5M}.

Holding the Nintendo* 64 Controller

While playing the *Monopoly*[™] game, we recommend you use the hand positions shown below. By holding the controller like this, you can operate the Control Stick freely with your left thumb. Using your right thumb, you can easily access the **A**, **B** or **C** Buttons. Place your left index finger on the **Z** Button on the back of the controller.



Connecting the Nintendo* 64 Controller

To play Monopoly, connect a controller to socket one located on the front panel of the Control Deck. If you change the connection during the game, you will need to turn the power OFF to make the connection active.

This game is designed for one or more human players. Players may share a controller, so only one controller is needed. However, the game plays just as well with multiple controllers.



WELCOME TO MONOPOLY"!

Monopoly, the world's favorite board game, now comes to Nintendo* 64! Play against friends or challenging computer opponents on the classic board, in a three-dimensional world that comes to life! Watch the tokens that everyone knows and loves take on a life of their own. So Advance to GO, collect \$200 bucks and get ready for an exciting Monopoly experience!

GETTING STARTED

You can play the *Monopoly* N64 game with up to 4 players. Your opponents can either be human or Al (computer-controlled artificial intelligence).

Correctly insert the Game Pak into the Nintendo 64 Control Deck and move the power switch to the ON position. Make sure not to touch the Control Stick at this time. After the introduction plays, press **Start** to begin the gameplay setup sequence.

Important! When setting up and playing the game, the current activities will be presented in the message bars located at the top and bottom of the screen. The buttons at the bottom of the screen represent the possible actions you can take. Further assistance is given by holding down the left shoulder button, which will give you further information on the buttons' functions.

STEP 1: SELECT THE GAME TYPE

Use the Control Stick to highlight one of the menu items. Press the **A** Button to confirm your selection, or the **B** Button to cancel.



Standard Game - Follows all the standard rules from the classic *Monopoly* board game.

Short Game - Plays just like the Standard Game, except for three changed rules. See "The Short Game" on page 18.

Timed Game - Players must agree to a definite time limit to the game. See "The Timed Game" on page 19.

Restore Game - Continues a previously saved game at the point where it was left off.

STEP 2: SET UP THE GAME

Use the Control Stick to highlight the menu items. Press the ${\bf A}$ Button to confirm your selections, or the ${\bf B}$ Button to cancel.



Add / Remove Players -

Select to add or remove a human or computer player. See "How to Add/Remove Players" below.

Gameplay Options -

Select to access the Gameplay Options menu. From there you can turn walking animations and audio on/off, as well as adjust the music and sound effects volume.

Game Rules Options - Select to access the Game Rules Options menu. See "Game Rules Options" on page 20.

Start Game - After you've set up the game to your liking, select this item to start playing!

HOW TO ADD/REMOVE PLAYERS

To Add a Human Player

First, select the **Add Human** button. Next, select a token to represent that player during play. Finally, use the **Control Stick** and the **A** Button to enter the player's name.

To Add a Computer Player

Select the **Add Computer** button and then select a personality type (Cautious, Bold, Normal or Intelligent) for that player.

To Remove a Human or Computer Player

Any player can be removed from a game before the game begins. To remove a player, select **Remove Last Playe**r from the Add Players menu. The last player that was added to the game will be deleted.

IT'S TIME TO PLAY

THE OFFICIAL RULES

The Game in Brief

Monopoly is the game of buying, renting or selling properties so profitably that players increase their wealth — the wealthiest becoming the eventual winner. Starting from the "GO" space, your token moves around the board according to your dice roll. When you land on a space that is not already owned by someone else, you may buy it from the Bank. If you choose not to buy it, you must auction it off to the highest bidder. Players who own properties collect rents from opponents landing there. The construction of houses and hotels greatly increases the rent you can collect on properties, so it is wise to build on as many sites as possible. If you need to raise more money, the Bank can give mortgages on properties. You must always obey the instructions given on Chance and Community Chest cards. Sometimes you will be sent to Jail.

Object

To be the only player left in the game that is not bankrupt.

Playing the Game

At the start of the game you will be given \$1,500.

On your turn, roll the dice and move forwards around the board in the direction of the arrow. The space you land on will determine what you have to do next. (Two or more tokens may rest on the same space at the same time.)

The space you land on may require you to do one of the following:

- * Buy properties (if you choose)
- * Pay rent (if you land on an owned property)
- * Pay taxes
- * Draw a Chance or Community Chest card
- * Go to Jail
- * Rest on the Free Parking space
- * Collect \$200 salary

Rolling Doubles

Take your regular turn; then roll the dice again for another turn. If you roll doubles for a third time in succession, you will be sent directly to Jail.

Passing "GO"

Every time you either land on or pass "GO," you receive \$200 from the Bank.

Buying Property

If you land on an unowned property, you may buy it if you so choose. If you decide to buy, the price of the property will be deducted from your cash funds. You will receive in exchange, as proof of ownership, that property's Title Deed.



If you decide not to buy, you must immediately auction the property to the highest bidder. Even though you declined the option of buying at the original price, you may join in the bidding. (See "Auctioning Property" on page 14.)

Owning Property

Owning property entitles you to collect rent from any "tenants" (other players) who land on that space. It is an advantage to own all the properties within a color-group — in other words to own a monopoly. You can build on any properties for which you own the complete color-group (as long as no properties within that color-group are mortgaged).

Landing on Owned Property

If you land on a property that has previously been bought by another player, you may be required to pay rent. The amount payable is shown on the Title Deed for that property and will vary according to the number of buildings on it. If a player owns all properties within a color-group, the rent payable is doubled on any property of that group not yet developed. **Note:** You cannot collect double rent if any one site in a color-group is mortgaged. Where houses or hotels

have been built on a property, the rent will increase and will be shown on that property's Title Deed. Rent is not payable on mortgaged properties.

Landing on the Utilities

If you land on a utility, and it is not already owned, you may buy it. If, however, the utility is already owned, you may be asked to pay rent to the owner. Rent amount is determined by your already rolled dice. If the owner has only one of the utilities, the rent will be *four* times your dice roll. If, however, the same player owns both utilities, you must pay *ten* times the amount of your dice roll. If you are sent to the utility as a result of a Chance or Community Chest card, you must pay ten times the amount shown from your last dice roll. If you decide not to buy, you must auction the utility to the highest bidder.

Landing on the Railroads

If you are the first to land on the railroad, you may buy it. If you decide not to buy, you must auction it to the highest bidder. Even though you declined to buy at the original price, you may join in the bidding. If the railroad is already owned when you land on it, you must pay the amount stated on the Title Deed. The amount payable will vary according to the number of other railroads owned by that player.

Landing on "CHANCE" and "COMMUNITY CHEST"

These cards may ask you to do one of the following:

- * Move your token
- * Pay money for example, in taxes
- * Receive money
- * Go to Jail
- * Get Out of Jail Free

If you pick a "Get Out of Jail Free" card, you may keep it until you wish to use it, or sell it at a mutually agreed upon price.

Landing on "INCOME TAX" and "LUXURY TAX"

When you land on either one of these spaces, the corresponding amount will be deducted from your cash funds and paid to the Bank.

Free Parking

When you land on "Free Parking," you must rest here until your next turn. There is no penalty for landing here.

Jail

You will be sent to Jail if:

- * You land on the "GO TO JAIL" space, or
- * You pick a Chance or Community Chest card which tells you to "GO DIRECTLY TO JAIL." or
- * You roll doubles three times in succession on your turn.

Your turn ends when you are sent to Jail. If you are sent there, you will not collect \$200 for passing GO, regardless of where you are on the board.

To get out of Jail you can:

- * Pay a fine of \$50 and continue on your next turn, or
- Purchase a "Get Out of Jail Free" card from another player at a mutually agreed upon price and use it to get out, or
- * Use a "Get Out of Jail Free" card if you already have one, or
- * Wait there for three turns, rolling the dice on each turn to try to roll doubles. If you roll doubles on any turn, move out of Jail using this dice roll.

After you have waited three turns, you must pay \$50 and then move out of Jail. **Note:** While in Jail you can collect rent on properties, provided they are not mortgaged.

Just Visiting

If you are not "sent to Jail" but, during the course of play, land on the Jail space, you are "Just Visiting" and incur no penalty. On your next turn, move ahead as usual.

Houses

Once you own all properties of a color-group, you can buy houses to put on any of those spaces. This increases the rent you can charge to passing tenants. The price of a house is shown on the relevant Title Deed.

You can only buy houses on your turn, and you must build *evenly*. You cannot build a second house on any one site of a color-group until you have built one house on every site of that group, and so on, up to a maximum of four houses per property. Selling houses must also be done evenly. You can buy or sell at any time, and as many buildings as your judgment and financial standing will allow.

Note: Houses may not be built if *any* site of the same color-group is mortgaged.

If you own all properties of a color-group, and only one or two of them have been built on, you can still collect double rent from another player who lands on one of your unimproved properties in that color-group.

Hotels

You must have four houses on *each* site of a complete color-group before you can buy a hotel. Hotels are bought in the same way as houses and cost four houses, which are returned to the Bank, plus the price shown on the Title Deed. Only one hotel may be erected on any one site.

Selling Property

You may sell undeveloped properties, railroads and utilities to any other player as a private transaction for a sum agreeable to both of you. (See "The Trading Screen" on page 17.) No property, however, may be sold to another player if any buildings stand on any of the properties of that color-group. Should you wish to sell a property from a color-group, you must first sell all buildings on those properties to the Bank.

Houses must be sold evenly, in the same way as they were bought. (See "Houses" on page 11). Houses and hotels cannot be sold to other players. They must be sold to the Bank at *half the value* stated on the relevant Title Deed.

For hotels, the Bank will pay half the cash price of the hotel plus half the price of the four houses, which were given to the Bank for the purchase of the hotel. All hotels on one color-group may be sold at once.

If necessary, hotels can be broken back down into houses to raise money. To do this, you can sell a hotel to the Bank and receive, in exchange, four houses as well as money for the hotel (i.e. half its cost).

Mortgaged property *cannot* be sold to the Bank, but can be sold to other players.

Mortgages

If you have no money left and are required to pay a debt, you can raise money by mortgaging a property. To do this, first sell off any buildings on that property to the Bank. (See "Mortgaging/Unmortgaging Properties" on page 15.) When you wish to repay your mortgage, you must pay the amount of the mortgage plus 10% interest.

Note: If you mortgage a property, you retain possession of it. No other player can secure it by paying off the mortgage to the Bank.

Rent cannot be collected on a mortgaged property. It can, however, still be collected for other properties of that color-group.

You can sell mortgaged property to other players at any agreed upon price. The buyer can then decide to remove the mortgage immediately by paying off the mortgage plus the 10% interest. Alternatively, he/she can pay the 10% but retain the property with a mortgage. In this case, when the mortgage is finally removed an additional 10% is payable.

When all sites of a color-group are no longer mortgaged, the owner may begin to buy back houses at full price.

Bankruptcy

If you owe the Bank or another player more money than you can raise from your assets, you are declared bankrupt and are out of the game.

If your debt is to the Bank, the Bank takes all your cash and Title Deeds. The Bank then auctions off each property to the highest bidder.

If you are made bankrupt by another player, your houses and hotels are sold to the Bank at half their original cost and that player receives any cash, Title Deeds and "Get Out of Jail Free" cards you own. If you own any mortgaged property, you must turn it over to that player. That player must immediately pay 10% and then choose whether to retain the mortgage or pay it off in full now.

Short on Cash?

If you owe more rent than you can pay in cash, you may be able to mortgage a property, sell a house or hotel, or negotiate a trade with another player to raise enough cash to pay your debt. In this case, the creditor may choose to accept certain property (even if it is mortgaged) at a value far in excess of the printed one in order to obtain additional sites, or to block another player from obtaining control of that property.

Money can only be loaned to a player by the Bank, and then only by mortgaging property.

THE GAMEPLAY SCREEN



On Your Turn

On your turn, press the **A** Button to roll the dice. Your token will then move to the appropriate space determined by the dice roll.

Buying Property

To buy an unowned property, press the **A** Button. The price of the property Deed will automatically be deducted from your bank account and the property card will be displayed in your corner of the screen.

If you land on an unowned property and do not want to buy it, press the **B** Button to put the property up for auction.

Auctioning Property

All players may participate in an auction, including players in Jail. To bid on a property, press the **Z** Button and adjust the amount of your bid with the Control Stick. The highest bidder is awarded the property.



Viewing Assets

On your turn you can view your assets (or your opponent's) by pressing the **Z** Button. From your Assets screen you can view individual property details, buy and sell houses to the Bank, mortgage property and perform trades with other players. To select a property for viewing, move the highlight around the board using the Control Stick.



Mortgaging/Unmortgaging Properties

Players mortgage and unmortgage properties to the Bank. To mortgage/unmortgage a property, go to the Assets screen and press the *Left* **C** Button to access the Mortgage menu. From the Mortgage menu, press the *Left* **C** Button to mortgage a selected property. To unmortgage a selected property, press the *Right* **C** Button. **Note:** Mortgaged properties will be displayed in gray on the board when pressing the right shoulder button.

Buying/Selling Houses and Hotels

Players buy and sell houses and hotels to the Bank. To buy a house or hotel, first go to your Assets menu. Using the Control Stick, highlight the property of the color-group on which you want to build a house or hotel. **Important!** You must own the entire color-group and it must be fully unmortgaged in order to build houses on any property within it. Also, the Even Build rule will automatically be enforced, thus you will not be allowed to build unevenly.

While the desired property is highlighted, press the *Right* **C** Button to enter the house/hotel menu. Press the *Right* **C** Button again to add a house/hotel to the highlighted property. To remove houses from the highlighted property, press the *Left* **C** Button. When you have finished building (or selling) houses, press the **A** Button to accept

the changes you have made. If you change your mind, press the **B** Button to return to your Assets menu with no changes having been made.

Note: A hotel can only be purchased after four houses have already been built on that property.

Change Your Viewing Angle

As your token moves around the board, press the *Up* **C** Button to change your viewing angle of the gameboard.

THE TRADING SCREEN

To propose a trade with another player, press the **Z** Button to activate Trading from the Assets screen.



How to Propose a Trade to Another Player

Using the Control Stick, select the player with whom you wish to trade. Next, using the **C** and **Z** Buttons, select the properties, immunities, money or Get Out of Jail Free Cards icons to trade those assets, respectively. Your assets are located at the bottom of the trading window while the player with whom you wish to trade is located at the top of the trading window. When you are satisfied with the trade setup, press the **A** Button. If at any time you wish to cancel the trade, press the **B** Button.

Your opponent must choose whether to ACCEPT, COUNTER or REJECT the deal. If he/she *accepts* the deal, play returns to the Gameplay screen with the assets transferred. If he/she *rejects* the deal, play returns to the Trading screen with nothing having changed hands. You can now modify your trade offer or cancel the trade altogether. If your opponent chooses to *counter* the offer, then he/she now controls the terms of the deal.

If a trade is proposed to you, press the **A** Button to accept the trade, the **Z** Button to propose a counteroffer, or the **B** Button to reject the trade outright.

Trading Mortgaged Properties

If you receive mortgaged property as part of a deal, you must pay 10% of the mortgage value as a surcharge for taking over the mortgage. If you later unmortgage the property, you will have to pay the mortgage principle plus 10%.

Trading Immunities

As part of a trading transaction, one player may grant another immunity from paying rent a number of times when they land on a property or set of properties. These immunities may not be sold or traded to a third party. **Note:** Trading immunities is only possible if the "Rent Immunity in Trading" game rules option has been set to ON.

Other Ways to Raise and Spend Money

If you need to raise money, you can always sell a house or hotel back to the Bank. If you're rolling in the dough, however, you can use that extra cash to buy a house or hotel, or to unmortgage a property.

Note: The property owner must then pay the Bank the amount of the mortgage plus 10% interest.

Winning

The last player left in the game is the winner.



THE SHORT GAME

At the start of a short game, the Bank deals three properties at random to each player. The players must immediately pay the Bank the price of each property. Play then continues as in a normal game.

In a short game, it is necessary to have only three houses (instead of four) on each property of a complete color-group before the player may buy a hotel. Rent for a hotel remains the same as in the normal game. The turn-in value of a hotel is still one-half the purchase price, which in this game is one house less than in the normal game.

The first player to go bankrupt retires from play and ends the game. Play immediately ceases, with the bankrupt player turning over to their creditor all that they have of value, including houses and hotels and any other properties. This happens when the creditor is a rival player or the Bank.

Each remaining player then values their own assets: (1) cash on hand; (2) property, utilities and railroads owned at the price displayed on the board; (3) any mortgaged property owned at the price displayed on the Title Deed; (4) houses, valued at purchase price; and (5) hotels, valued at purchase price including the value of the three houses turned in.

The richest player wins!

THE TIMED GAME

Before play begins, players must agree to a definite time limit to the game, when the richest player will be declared the winner. Use the Control Stick to highlight the length of time you want to play (15 minutes, 30 minutes, 45 minutes or 1 hour). Press the **A** Button to confirm your selection, or the **B** Button to cancel.



At the start of a Timed Game, the Bank deals two properties at random to each player. The players must immediately pay the Bank the price of each property. Play then continues as in a normal game.



GAME RULES OPTIONS

Highlight the game rule option that you would like to change and then press the **Z** Button to change the current setting. After you have changed the game rules to your liking, press the **A** Button to confirm your selections.



Free Parking Pot (Default = OFF) - If this rule is ON, \$500 is placed on Free Parking at the start of the game. Also, all taxes, fines and payments to the Bank are put on this space. If a player lands directly on the space he/she gets the money. When a player wins the money, the pot will grow only by taxes, fines and the payments to the Bank.

Double Money for Landing on GO (Default = OFF) - If this rule is ON, a player collects \$400, rather than \$200, for landing directly on the GO space.

Even Build Rule (Default = ON) - When set to ON, houses must be evenly distributed among all properties in a group. The number of houses on any property cannot be more than one greater than any other property.

Go Around Once Before Buying (Default = OFF) - When set to ON, players must go around the board one time before they are allowed to purchase property.

Unsold Properties Go to Auction (Default = ON) - When set to OFF, unsold properties will go back to the Bank, not to auction.

No Collecting Rent from Jail (Default = OFF) - When set to ON, players may not collect rent from Jail.

Rent Immunity in Trading (Default = ON) - When set to ON, players may trade rent immunity on properties.

Number of Starting Properties (Default = 0) - When set to a number (1, 2 or 3), this quantity of properties will be distributed to each player at the start of the game. Each player will be required to pay the face value of each of his/her properties to the Bank.

Free Starting Properties (Default = OFF) - If the previous option is enabled and this option is set to ON, players are not required to pay face value of the property to the Bank. Players will receive these starting properties for free.

THE PAUSE MENU

Players may access a variety of in-game options from the Pause Menu by pressing the Start button. From the Pause Menu, select from the following:



Help Information - Select this item to access in-game help.

Game Options - Select this item to access the Gameplay Options menu previously described on page 7.

Save Game - Select this item to save the current game to the Nintendo Game Pak. Only one game can be saved at a time. **Note:** When this option reads "Save Game Between Turns," you cannot save the game until the current player has finished his/her turn.

Return to Game - Select this item to return to the game in progress.

Quit the Game - Select this item to quit the game in progress.

HASBRO INTERACTIVE WEB SITES

Monopoly has an exciting, full and active web site dedicated to ensure you get the most out of your new game. You can visit us at:

http://www.monopoly.com

Kids, check with your parent or guardian before visiting the site. Visit and you will discover that Hasbro Interactive web sites contain such things as:

- * Technical Support
- * Player Contact Information
- * Demos
- * Interviews
- * Chat and Community
- * Hints and Tips

- * Software Upgrades
- * Interaction
- * Competitions
- * Downloadable Themes
- * And much more

We are constantly updating our web sites so stop by and visit us frequently. With events and new additions planned, you won't want to miss out.

FORTHCOMING AND EXISTING HASBRO INTERACTIVE PRODUCTS

For more information on forthcoming and other existing Hasbro Interactive products, please visit our main web site at:

http://www.hasbro-interactive.com

Kids, check with your parent or guardian before visiting the site.

ONLINE STORE

If you enjoyed this product and would like to purchase other great Hasbro Interactive products online, stop by the ONLINE STORE for convenient shopping from home. Purchasers must be 18 years or older or have parent's permission.

TECHNICAL SUPPORT

If you are having technical difficulties with the *Monopoly* Nintendo 64 game, and need to call Technical Support, please have the correct name of the game available (and be ready to take notes).

For telephone technical support, please call **(410) 568-2377**. Support hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 midnight, Eastern Standard Time, Monday through Friday, and from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time, Saturday and Sunday, holidays excluded. No game hints will be given through this number.

You may communicate with our technical support directly from the Internet or through popular commercial online providers, such as America Online, Prodigy, and CompuServe. Direct any E-mail questions concerning the *Monopoly* Nintendo 64 game to: **Hi@hasbro.com**

To find out more about the *Monopoly* Nintendo 64 game or any other Hasbro Interactive CD-ROM product, please visit:

http://www.hasbro-interactive.com

Kids, check with your parent or guardian before visiting the site.

LICENSE AGREEMENT

*** IMPORTANT ***

This is a legal agreement between the end user ("You") and Hasbro Interactive, Inc., its affiliates and subsidiaries (collectively "Hasbro Interactive"). This Agreement is part of a package (the "Package") that also includes a game cartridge or disc (collectively, the "Game") and certain written materials (the "Documentation").

BY INSTALLING THE GAME, YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTAND THEM, AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THEM. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT, IF YOU PURCHASED THE PACKAGE FROM AN AUTHORIZED RESELLER OF HASBRO INTERACTIVE, THAT RESELLER IS NOT HASBRO INTERACTIVE'S AGENT AND IS NOT AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS, CONDITIONS OR WARRANTIES, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, ON HASBRO INTERACTIVE'S BEHALF NOR TO VARY ANY OF THE TERMS OR CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT.

If You do not agree to the terms of this Agreement, promptly return the entire Package to the place You obtained it for a full refund.

LIMITED LICENSE: You are entitled to use this Game for your own use, but may not sell or transfer reproductions of the Game or Documentation to other parties in any way.

OWNERSHIP; COPYRIGHT: Title to the Game and the Documentation, and patents, copyrights and all other property rights applicable thereto, shall at all times remain solely and exclusively with Hasbro Interactive and its licensors, and

You shall not take any action inconsistent with such title. The Game and the Documentation are protected by United States, Canadian and other applicable laws and by international treaty provisions. Any rights not expressly granted herein are reserved to Hasbro Interactive and its licensors.

OTHER RESTRICTIONS: You may not cause or permit the disclosure, copying, renting, licensing, sublicensing, leasing, disseminating or otherwise distributing of the Game or the Documentation by any means or in any form, without the prior written consent of Hasbro Interactive. You may not modify, enhance, supplement, create derivative work from, adapt, translate, reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise reduce the Game to human readable form.

LIMITED WARRANTY:

Hasbro Interactive warrants for a period of ninety (90) days following original retail purchase of this copy of the Game that the Game is free from substantial errors or defects that will materially interfere with the operation of the Game as described in the Documentation. This limited warranty applies to the initial purchaser only. EXCEPT AS STATED ABOVE, HASBRO INTERACTIVE MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY OR CONDITION, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, REGARDING THIS Game, THE IMPLIED WARRANTY THAT THE GAME IS FIT FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND THE IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY SHALL BOTH BE LIMITED TO THE NINETY (90) DAY DURATION OF THIS LIMITED EXPRESS WARRANTY, THESE AND ANY OTHER IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, ARE OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMED. Some jurisdictions do not allow limitations on how long an implied warranty or condition lasts, so the above limitation may not apply to You. This limited warranty gives You specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights which vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

If you believe you have found any such error or defect in the Game during the warranty period, (i) if you are in the United States, call Hasbro Interactive's Consumer Affairs Department at 800-683-5847 between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 midnight Monday through Friday (Eastern Time) and 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday, holidays excluded, and provide your Product number; or (ii) if you are outside the United States, send your original Game to Hasbro Interactive at Caswell Way, Newport, Gwent, NP9 0YH, United Kingdom, together with a dated proof of purchase, your Product number, a brief description of such error or defect and the address to which it is to be returned. If you have a problem resulting from a manufacturing defect in the Game, Hasbro Interactive's entire liability and Your exclusive remedy for breach of this limited warranty shall be the replacement of the Game, within a reasonable period of time and without charge, with a corrected version of the Game. Some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of relief, incidental or consequential damages, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to You.

HASBRO INTERACTIVE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR OTHER INDIRECT DAMAGES, EVEN IF HASBRO INTERACTIVE IS ADVISED OF OR AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. IN NO EVENT SHALL HASBRO INTERACTIVE'S LIABILITY

EXCEED THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THIS PACKAGE. Some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, incidental, consequential, indirect or exemplary damages, or the limitation of liability to specified amounts, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to You.

GENERAL: This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between Hasbro Interactive and You with respect to subject matter hereof. Any change to this Agreement must be in writing, signed by Hasbro Interactive and You. Terms and conditions as set forth in any purchase order which differ from, conflict with, or are not included in this Agreement, all not become part of this Agreement unless specifically accepted by Hasbro Interactive in writing. You shall be responsible for and shall pay, and shall reimburse Hasbro Interactive on request if Hasbro Interactive is required to pay, any sales, use, value added (VAT), consumption or other tax (excluding any tax that is based on Hasbro Interactive's net income), assessment, duty, tariff, or other fee or charge of any kind or nature that is levied or imposed by any governmental authority on the Package.

EXPORT AND IMPORT COMPLIANCE: In the event You export the Game or the Documentation from the country in which You first received it, You assume the responsibility for compliance with all applicable export and re-export regulations, as the case may be.

GOVERNING LAW; ARBITRATION: This Agreement shall be governed by, and any arbitration hereunder shall apply, the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, U.S.A., excluding (a) its conflicts of laws principles; (b) the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods; (c) the 1974 Convention on the Limitation Period in the International Sale of Goods; and (d) the Protocol amending the 1974 Convention, done at Vienna April 11, 1980.

Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or to a breach hereof, including its interpretation, performance or termination, shall be finally resolved by arbitration. The arbitration shall be conducted by three (3) arbitrators, one to be appointed by Hasbro Interactive, one to be appointed by You and a third being nominated by the two arbitrators so selected or, if they cannot agree on a third arbitrator, by the President of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA"). The arbitration shall be conducted in English and in accordance with the commercial arbitration rules of the AAA. The arbitration. including the rendering of the award, shall take place in Boston, Massachusetts. and shall be the exclusive forum for resolving such dispute, controversy or claim. The decision of the arbitrators shall be binding upon the parties hereto, and the expense of the arbitration (including without limitation the award of attorneys' fees to the prevailing party) shall be paid as the arbitrators determine. The decision of the arbitrators shall be executory, and judgment thereon may be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Paragraph to the contrary, Hasbro Interactive shall have the right to institute judicial proceedings against You or anyone acting by, through or under You, in order to enforce Hasbro Interactive's rights hereunder through reformation of contract, specific performance, injunction or similar equitable relief.

CREDITS

Hasbro Interactive

Tom Dusenberry President

Eric Hayashi
Executive Producer

David Walls
Creative Director

Sharon Rosenstein Senior Product Manager

John Sutyak Chief Creative Officer

Tony Parks Senior V.P. Research and Development

Rich Reily
V.P. of Technology

Michael Craighead Director of Quality Assurance

Kurt Boutin Q.A. Manager

Andy Mazurek Q.A. Supervisor

Jennifer Kaczor

Jim Buchanan Managing Director

John Hurlbut General Manager

Gale Steiner
Director of Marketing

George Burtch Director of Marketing Services

Tim Evans Channel Marketing Director Sarah McIlroy Channel Marketing Manager

Laura Tomasetti Director of Public Relations

Steve Webster Chief Visual Officer

Steve Martin Manager of Creative Services

Elizabeth Mackney
Manager of
Editorial/Documentation
Services

Kathryn Lynch Creative Services Manager

Dave Cronin Graphic Designer

Patricia McCarthy Graphic Designer

Tony Moreira
Manager of Technical
Services

Bob Sadacca V.P. of Administration and Operations

Tracy Kureta
Operations and Special
Projects Manager

Laurel Marchessault Donna Mahan Linda Ferros Legal and Finance

Special Thanks
Absolute Quality Inc.

Hasbro Interactive Worldwide

Tim Christian

Managing Director

Roger Carpenter Stuart Thody Producers

Chris Down
Executive Producer

Kate Webster
Director of Marketing

Steve Cross Creative Director

Sam Baker Head of Localization

Jason Dutton Director of Public Relations

Roger Carpenter Technical Services Manager

Minds Eye Productions

Martin Batten
Managing Director

Matt Clark
Executive Producer

Mike Gray Producer

Pete Baron Lead Programmer

Dave Hunt
Al Programmer

Pete Baron Additional Al

Luke Robinson Lead Artist

Marcus Fielding
Music and Sound

LICENSE AGREEMENT

This is a legal agreement between the end user ("You") and Hasbro Interactive, Inc., its affiliates and subsidiaries (collectively "Hasbro Interactive"). This Agreement is part of a package (the "Package") that also includes a game cartridge or disc (collectively, the "Game") and certain written materials (the "Documentation")

BY INSTALLING THE GAME, YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THAT AGREEMENT, UNDERSTAND THEM, AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THEM, YOU UNDERSTAND THAT, IF YOU PURCHASED THE PACKAGE FROM AN AUTHORIZED RESELLER OF HASBRO INTERACTIVE. THAT RESELLER IS NOT HASBRO INTERACTIVES AGENT AND IS NOT AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS, CONDITIONS OR WARRANTIES, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, ON HASBRO INTERACTIVE'S BEHALF NOR TO VARY ANY OF THE TERMS OR CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT.

tl You do not agree to the terms of this Agreement, promptly return the entire Package to the place You obtained it for a full refund

LIMITED LICENSE. You are entitled to use this Game for your own use, but may not sell or transfer reproductions of the Game or Documentation to other parties in any way.

OWNERSHIP. COPYRIGHT. Title to the Game and the Documentation, and patents, copyrights and all other properly rights applicable thereto, shall at all limes remain solely and exclusively with Hasbro Interactive and its ticensors, and You shall not take any action inconsistent with such title The Game and the Documentation are protected by United States, Canadian and other applicable laws and by International Iteraty provisions. Any rights not expressly granted herein are reserved to Hasbro Interactive and its (icensors.

OTHER RESTRICTIONS: You may not cause or permit the disclosure, copying, renting, licensing, sublicensing, leasing, disseminating or otherwise distributing of the Game or the Documentation by any means or in any form, without the prior written consent of Hashor Interactive. You may not modify, enhance, supplement, create derivative work from, adapt, translate, reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise reduce the Game to human readable form.

LIMITED WARRANTY. Hasbro Interactive warrants for a period of ninety (90) days following original retail purchase of this copy of the Game that the Game is free from substantial errors or defects that will materially interfere with the operation of the Game as described in the Documentation. This limited warranty applies to the initial purchaser only EXCEPT AS STATED ABOVE, HASBRO INTERACTIVE MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY OR CONDITION, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, REGARDING THIS Game. THE IMPLIED WARRANTY THAT THE GAME IS FIT FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND THE IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY SHALL BOTH BE LIMITED TO THE NINETY (90) DAY DURATION OF THIS LIMITED EXPRESS WARRANTY. THESE AND ANY OTHER IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, ARE OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMED Some jurisdictions do not allow timitations on how long an implied warranty or condition lasts, so the above limitation may not apply to You. This limited warranty gives You specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights which vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction

If you believe you have found any such error or defect in the Game ouring the warranty period. (i) if you are in the United States, call Hastor Interactive's Consumer Affairs Department at 800-683-5847 between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. midnight, Monday through Friday (Eastern Time) and 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday, holidays excluded, and provide your Product number, or (ii) if you are outside the United States, send your original Game to Hasbor Interactive at Caswell Way, Newport, Gwent, NP9 0YH, United Kingdom, logether with a dated proof of purchase, your Product number, a brief description of such error or defect and the address to which it is to be returned. If you have a problem resulting

from a manulacturing defect in the Game, Hasbro Interactive's entire flability and Your exclusive remedy for breach of this limited warranger to the replacement of the Game, within a reasonable period of time and without charge, with a corrected version of the Game. Some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of relief, incidental or consequential damages, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to You.

I ASBRO INTERACTIVE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INCI-DENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR OTHER INDIRECT DAMAGES, EVEN IF HASBRO INTERACTIVE IS ADVISED OF OR AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. IN NO EVENT SHALL HASBRO INTERACTIVE'S LIABILITY EXCEED THE PUR-CHASE PRICE OF THIS PACKAGE. Some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, incidental, consequential, indirect or exemplary damages, or the limitation of liability to specified amounts, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apoly for You.

GENERAL. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between Hasbro Interactive and You with respect to subject matter hereof. Any change to this Agreement must be in writing, signed by Hasbro Interactive and You. Terms and conditions as set forth in any purchase order which differ from, conflict with, or are not included in this Agreement, shall not become part of this Agreement unless specifically accepted by Hasbro Interactive in writing. You shall be responsible for and shall pay, and shall reimburse Hasbro Interactive on request if Hasbro Interactive is required to pay, any sales, use, value added (VAT), consumption or other tax (excluding any tax that is based on Hasbro Interactive's net income), assessment, duty, tarifly, or other fee or charge of any kind or nature tital is levied or imposed by any governmental authority on the Package.

EXPORT AND IMPORT COMPLIANCE: In the event You export the Game or the Documentation from the country in which You first received it. You assume the responsibility for compliance with all applicable export and re-export regulations, as the case may be

GOVERNING LAW, ARBITRATION: This Agreement shall be governed by, and any arbitration hereunder shall apply, the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis, U.S.A., excluding (a) its conflicts of laws principles; (b) the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods; (c) the 1974 Convention on the Limitation Period in the International Sale of Goods; and (d) the Protocol amending the 1974 Convention, done at Vienna April 11, 1980.

Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or to a breach hereof, including its interpretation, performance or termination, shall be finally resolved by arbitration. The arbitration shall be conducted by three (3) arbitrators, one to be appointed by Hasbro Interactive, one to be appointed by You and a third being nominated by the two arbitrators so selected or, if they cannot agree on a third arbitrator, by the President of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA") The arbitration shall be conducted in English and in accordance with the commercial arbitration rules of the AAA. The arbitration, including the rendering of the award, shall take place in Boston, Massachusetts, and shall be the exclusive forum for resolving such dispute, controversy or claim. The decision of the arbitrators shall be binding upon the parties hereto, and the expense of the arbitration (including without limitation the award of attorneys' fees to the prevailing party) shall be paid as the arbitrators determine. The decision of the arbitrators shall be executory, and judgment thereon may be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Paragraph to the contrary, Hasbro Interactive shall have the right to institute judicial proceedings against You or anyone acting by, through or under You. in order to enforce Hasbro Interactive's rights hereunder through reformation of contract, specific performance, injunction or similar equitable relief.